.

From: Steve Balimer

Sent: Thursday, Novembaer 09, 1995 12:39 PM
To: Robbie Bach

Ce: Richard Fade .

Subject: RE; Memo on DAD business

This is a tremendous document— one that | agre with very much (see some specifc notes | made in the document for
reinforcement or other vies) ! am glad bill read it but now that | have read it 1 am not sure he felt the issues you raise as
much as | do BUT | did not save his reposne  what are you guys doing io have a next step thought process on the issues
you raise How can | help

CHALLE~] DOC

From: Robbie Bach

To: Steve Baillmer )

Subject: RE: Mema on DAD business

Date: Monday, November 06, 1995 11.19AM

Here you go...comments/houghts welcomed.
Rohbie

<<Fiie Attachment CHALLE~1.DOC>>
From: Steve Ballmer

To: Robbie Bach

Gc: Richard Fade

Subject: FW: Memo on DAD husiness
Date: Sunday, November 05, 1995 10:16PM

your memo sounds very interesting would love a copy if appropariate

From: Robbie Bach

To: Bill Gates

Cc: Brian Fleming; Jeff Raikes; Nathan Myhrvold: Peta Higgins: Richard Fade; Steve Baillmer
Subject: RE: Memo on DAD business

Date: Thursday, November 02, 1895 5:53PM

Thanks for the feedback — makes sense. Just a couple of clarifying comments in CAPS below...

Robhbie

From: Bill Gates

To: Robbie Bach

Ce: Bill Gates; Brian Fleming; Jeff Raikes; Nathan Myhrvold, Pete Higgins; Richard Fade; Steve Ballmer
Subject: RE: Memo on DAD business

Date: Wednesday, November 01, 1995 2:51PM

1l just make a few quick comments on this. Your memo s very

stimuiating and memos like this should be written. 1 Bink you attack o

much in here. Vision is the key and mast of the rest is unimportant. §

wanted to cogy tmore people on my comments but then they would have to get
our memo. Perhaps my comments should be recast as some point 1o be

independent of the memo.

AGREE THAT iT 1S A BIT "STRONG" — SOME OF THAT IS MY OWN PENT UP ENERGY ON THE TOPICS <G>, BUT
SOME OF IT IS TO MAKE SURE WE PUSH HARD ON THE ISSUES.

| hava been raising the issue about the size of the business going
forward for a number of years and | agree we haven't done enough to
really think this through. You raise a number of ood questions. However
! think you raise questions about some things | think are gaod and
shouldn't be changed.
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You talk 2 lot about the “enterprise”. Don't confuse the fact that 75% of

our sales are made to someaone between us and the end user as saying 75%
is entarprise. Most pecpie don't work for anterprises. Enterprise

describes only very large customers.

PERHAPS THIS IS A MIS-USE OF THE WORD BY ME. MY ISSUE IS MORE “CORPORATE CUSTOMERS” OF ANY
REASONABLE SIZE, NOT JUST THE LARGEST ENTERPRISES. FOR MOST COMPANIES IN THE MORG/LORG
SPAGE, MIS ISSUES ARE A BIG DEAL NOW AND OUR APPS TODAY MAKE THEIR LIFE PRETTY DIFFICULT. AND
OFCa6 ADDS SOME SIGNIFICANT FILE FORMAT, SETUP, AND GENERAL COMPATIBILITY ISSUES. IF WE WANT
TO SUCCEED IN ANNUATY, WE NEED TO REMOVE SOME OF THE “FRICTION" IN OUR UPGRADES FOR MIS.

Our strength has to continue to be to excite individuals with our
products. Thera is NO substitute for this. Nat with Windows and not with
Office. Individuals diracty or indirectly wanting what we provide is the
key to our future, :

AGREE WITH THIS 100% — THE 1EU MODEL IS VERY MUCH ALIVE AND CRITICAL TO SUCCESS. THISIS OUR
DEVELOPMENT STRENGTH AND HERITAGE THAT WE SHOULD CONTINUE TO LEVERAGE. MY ONLY POINT IS
THAT WE NEED TC BALANCE TH!S WITH SOME REASONABLE % OF “MIS® MODEL FEATURES.

Qne thing that you cnly talk about a lithe bit is handling large

scenarios - parsonngl freviews, sales analysis, etc.. There are a few
dozen fairly large scenarios we could handle with the right enhancements
to Office. We should try and take a few of these - like we toos
spreadsheet/accounting and see if we can do things ourselves. Only
scenanos that are broad are worth pursuing.

Yeu tak about organizational issues. | don't understand how these issues
relate to ur business problem. | don't think mixing those into this
discussion makes sense The organization exists to help solve business

roblems. If you think we can dao better at golving the problams we have

used on then we are fine thal is a separate memo. As faras lhe new

problems we should facus on lets figure those out first and then decide
what it means for the organzation. Without this separation memos can
become very internally focused on complaints that you woul find in any
organization. The bottom line & our or:};:mizatbn works very well at
solving the problems we asked it to solve. | am glad o hear how it can
do befter but don't mix that in with coming up with the new problems we
shouid ask it to solve,

FAIR POINT.

You talk about low prices. Lets keep in mind that the tools we are

talking about people use & lot. | wish | knew the sumbers about how much
Offica users use Cffice typically. These toois help them get their job
done, People and organizations | believe would be willing to pay $100 per
year to always have access to the latest and be able to be part of an
cnline commiunity where lots of support, sclutions and discussion takes
place. Cur competitors are aiready down at very very low prices. To the
degres they ara “burning out” that is pricing at a level where they can't
fund the R&D, marketing and support {0 make their busingss viable in the
future we wili have to be patient. Patienca maans matching their prices

in large accounts when we get a chance and frying to avoid them getting
too much OEM volume by being willing to take kow prices. | don't think
our retail prices should change. Smartsuite and IBM 1s a special case
which we cannot do much about. With markeling | think wa can make it
clear we are the Office package with a future and people care about
having a product that is moving forwand In important ways. | agree that
articulating more of a vision 1o customers is criticat and we are not

doing it AT ALL. | picked Office as my Comdex keynote to try and
stimulate that process. What the DAD group has come up with is a VERY
GOQD start on this. It doasn't have as much NLP/Voice as | want to get
into the vision but | am impressed with how tha focus allowed us to do
something pretty solid.

Our competitors will not be able to have a vision so we HAVE TO HAVE one.
Who are the key people to make this happen - we naed to @mpawer tham.
This is different than preannouncing.

1 think the weakness of Lotus and Novell is more important than you

suggest in your memo. FL. AG Q004165
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AGREED — I'M JUST A BIT GUN-SHY OF DISCOUNTING THEM COMPLETELY <G>

Mac is a special issue. Chaoices include: dropping Office 96 on Mac,

making 98 the last Mac release and either saying that publicly or not

saying it. | need to understand our Mac business better. | know the

situabon is bleak but its still a large business by many standards. |

wonder what these customers would da if they knew we were doing less and
less support. | am open minded here.

WE WILL DO SOME ANALYSIS HERE 50 THAT WE CAN HAVE THE DISCUSSION.

As far as RISC goss its all 3 question of the margina! cost. | can't have
the discussion about dropping it without real data on the cost of the

work. | am glad that we made the effort to do the releasas since some day
Office will have to be portable even though in the next few years there

is really no profit coming from that waork,

1 think its easy to lose sight of how much improvement we can still do i

the applications. Features kke integration with scheduling or answer

wizard are of significant impact. Marketing has to learn how o generate
MORE end user enthusiasm for these kind of advances to create the bottoms
up demand we need to see.

| see 4 big challenges: 1) Exploiting our advanced research and guiding
it 2) Internet 3) Home and 4) Annuity

Most of the future of Office is in research today. Voice. Bayesian
maodeling. NLP. Video recogniton.

The Bayesian work we are doing is very important. Have you looked at
Lumiere? Voice recognition will be coming along within the next 4 years.

} assume mast managers in DAD read my old “Sea change” memo. Its clear we
can use this research technology to define new lavels of usability from
producglgrity applications. NLP is something we need to get even more hard
core about

DAD needs to get aven more involvad in hafping us guide these research
areas. Benefils to end users from these tschnologies will not be matched

Noveit or Latus. Shipping products using these things will allow us 10
vividly show that they are out of the game.

Internet. This is our companies primary focus and Office is part of it
Vermeer proves we are weak on authoring. Maybe we should buz them or
someone like them and bootstrap towards an integrated approach. Sinfosky
has been a great advocate of getting us moving but its clear we need to

do even more. We are going to build screen sharing (Oprah) into the
operating systermn. | sent mail recentty about defining role to restrict

how users can edit things which is a feature we don't have planned. Ve
need some craativity here even beyond what we have already done. New
competitors will emerge saying that companies don't need Office.
Fortunately pnnted documents will sill be popular for at least a decade

so we have a good chance to really do the right thing. The relationship

o I_-I'I‘thFORMS is one area | need to drive some more work in. We need some
vision here.

| used to have retreats whera we would focus on the preducts and where
they would be in 3 years. Like most retreats if | don't drive them they
don't seem to happen. These Office related retreats have disappeared
sul.lggg?stmg people don't care ta plan out a future. What has taken their
place

Home and Annuity. | think we are finally focusing on these. | was pleased
with the BOOP annuity kick off meeting. | am pleased we are going to by
some tactical stuff on the home, -

From: Robbie Bach{SMTP:robbieb

Sent - Tuesday, October 31, 1995 10:08 PM

To: billg

Cec: peteh; richardf

Subject: Memo on DAD business . FL AG 0004165
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As | mentioned to you when we discussed advertising, I've cornpiled some
thoughts on whera we are with the DAD business and what we need to
address to move the business forward. Fve aitached the latest draft of
this which incerporates some feedback from RichardF. We are using this
as one of the "pre-readings” as we prepare our three year plan.Your
thoughts and comments welcomed..

Thanks
Robbie
<<File: CHALLE~-1.DOC>>
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Dates 10/11/95

To: DADMGR, RBDirect

L~ =] PeteH, Nathaniv

From: Robbie Bach

RE: Building for the Next Generalion

This mama is focused on cur longer-tenm strategy for the Deskiop Applications business. The goal is
to evaluate the heaith of cur business and what sieps we need 1o take to improve that health. Note that
by nature, this takes a more “nagative” outiook on wheare we are and where we need to go. Some of it
i parhaps 3 bit overstated and based on anectotes, but | believe the basic issues & raises are real and
significant. | also don't think that any of it is “revoluionary” or even particulary difficult to see today. |
jmt&inkit’ssytobseperspedvennwherewea'eand it's useful to take the time to look at the
broader picture. The botiom fine thesis | presant is that the business has some significant risks; that
our business model, product strategy, and sales and marketing approach are mis-aligned; and that this
represents a significant threat to the company's overal health and revenue stream. Comments
encouraged and welcomed.

Background

If you look at our situation today, you'd see whal is an apparently healthy, strong business. Our
revenue growth over the past few years has been dramatic. Our products provide a phenomenal peofit
margin 1o the bottomn line, which creates an engine for growth in the rest of the company.  Cur market
share © at an all ime high and our two pnmary competitors are in senous business and financial
trouble. We've just preduced a new generation of applications and have a second version of those
applications close to completion, 1 think we have one of the best design, development, test, alc. groups
in the software industry, and their work is backed by a great marketing. In shom, we have an
embarrassment of riches and should congratulate ourseives on a job weil done.

So What is the Problem?

However, if you step back for a moment to lock at the forest, the situation is less positive. The
dynamics of the marketplace are changing rapidly in ways that work against us. Much of the hardware
growih is taking place in markets where our sales are traditionally weak, there ane fewer switchers or
pure new users to sell to, and its becoming increasingly more difficult to upgrade large percentages of
owrinstalled basa. In shart, it's not clear where we are gaing to generate growth in the businass and if's
woith asking whather we ars heading toward the revenue fiattening we have already experienced in the
Mac markel On the communicalions side, there is a perception amongst many “influentials® that our
products suffer from “feature glut” and a feeling amongst our corparate buyers that we don't really
understand their business environment very well, Furthermare, given our success and apparent lack of
quality competiion, the press is taking a much more critical approach to our business, often going out
of thelr way 10 write the negative angles on various stories.

As outlined below, | think these are just a few of the waming signs thal we have some significant risks
to manage over the next 1-2 years. The answers to & series of faily basic questions Ulminate the
challenges we face:

CONF IDENTIAL
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Building for the Next Generation

Question 1: Who are our customers?

The easy answer to this question is that our customers are the end-users who use our software. And
certainly, at some level that is very true. We want tem to have a tremendous experience with our
software, purchase again, and recommend it to cthers. This “IEU” oriented customer segmentation
the conventional wisdom that has driven much of our marketing and product strategy over the past five
years. Even in cororate accounts, we have counted on end users o drive the move towards our
products from “the bottom up” creating pressure on IS managers to provide our kools.

Certainly, this is a valld mode! hat should continue to drive some of our devalopment, marketing, and
sales resources, However, as our penetration and share has increased, and as corporate accounts
have standardzed on our appications, IS managers have bacome much more important in the
process. A rough estimate would say that 25% of our sales come from 2 retait environment where in
the vast majority of cases we ara soiing to an end-user. The remaining 75% of our sales are somehow
dnven through organizations, with IS departments playing a key role  Even if you assume that a some
percentage of these sales are infiuenced or controlied by end-users or deparment level managers, you
cannot escape the fact that our prmary buying audience is an 1S professional

>>»> | would say our primary scregning audnenoe not buying audience except in rare cases where we
really have features that IS can hang their hat on

managing hundreds or thousands of PCs PLUS the rest of the technology infrastructure 3t the
company. This raises some interesting questions:

1. Ame we developing the right products for this customer or are we developing products designed
for end-users that have %o be shoe-homed into an IS decision maker's mindset and needs?
Put ancther way, have we committedi/dedicated ourselves to be an “entermiise application
vendor” and afigned our product, marketing, and sales strategy accordingly?

2, Have we spent enough time trying to undersiand these customers and targeting our marketing
at them® Are thay the #1 target audience for our marketing and sales efforts?

1 Do we send a consistent, consolidated message that spans all of Microsoft's varicus product
groups and communicates our overall strategy for meeting IS needs?

4 Is there something we should be doing to broaden our customer base and reduce our
dependency on this IS group? Are thare significant pockets of end-user buyers that we have
not tapped into?

Question 2: Who is the competition?

Of caurse, the straightforward answer to this question is PerfectOffice and SmartSuite. In some shape
or form, these products or their component apps have been our competition almost since the beginning
of the applications business, and they ace really the only products that hit the radar screen when you
consider sales situations, channel focus, market share, or any other indicator,

While | still think they are competitors to whom we must pay attenton and there will be specific sales
situations where we must be aggressive, | think the battie is basically over. Lotus’ application business
has shrunk 1o less than $400M per year ($118M Q1 FY95) and IBM certainly did not buy them for
SmartSuite.  SmartSuite’s development eam is in disamay, they ane having a difficult ime shipping
products and thay don't have much credibity in the market. Novel's application business has shrunk
in hatf over the past 12 menths fo about $350M and their tatest quarter (Q4 FYS5) was only about
$35M (or 13% of the total company) — this is tuly stunning for a company that was bought a year ago
for over $1.1 bilion in stock and accounted for 28% of Novell's sales at that ime (Q4 FYS4). In short,
while we should never completely take our eye off of these products as competitors, we should
recognize thal they are not the major threat to our fulure success.
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Buikling for the Next Generation

So, if SmartSuite and PerfectOffice aren't the primary competiion, who is? | think there are three
sources of compettve threat,

» First and foremost, | think Office 4.x (or whatever the previous version is) is our largest
competitor. Buyers, in particular these in organizations, are basically happy with our products
- they are nice, solid tools that get the job done. The problem, of course, is that the bar for
seling upgrades to these people is now much, much higher and we don't have a good process
for making this eale beyond maintenance of our traditional packaged product business. If our
products are viewed as “everyday tools”, then nothing is easier or bettar than what seems to
work just fine day. This is compounded by situations in which the upgrade requires
significant transkion costs based en file formats, programming language changes, efc. In
some ways, its anaiogous to the old situation whers we had o convince people it was worth
the effort to switch from 123 and WordPgriect, and we had to provide appropriate tools to
make that easier,

>>>>>agree

. Semnd.ﬁ-uelastgaspsﬁ'omSn'tansmleandPedauomoecreatamtmetlorsofadmrent
nature - namely IBM and Novel ~ companies that desperately want 2 blunt our thrust into the
enterprise market One effective way to do that & Io sacrfice a dying business {their
applications) to either enhance their enterprise offerings through bundles/giveaways or to drive
prices down thus reducing the cash flow we generate from applications o invest in BSD and
other areas. 1BM is the larger threat here because of their bigger, deeper pockets, but Novell
has very littie I lose (who would buy their apps business if they wanted to divest) and in many
ways is mare threatened by our BSD initiative.

e Third, shifis in technology of the fundamentais of the market coukl pose a threat. Histoncally,
the thing that has knocked the leader off the top of the hill in our business has beena failure to
identify and respond io basic disconinuies in the market Examples include the
standardization on DOS. the move to GUI, and the move to Suites. There are st least two
technalngy shifis that | can see that could hurt us (I'm sure there ane more). The most obvious
is the move loward the Intemet and a connected world. Companies like Netscape will try 1o
change the entire dynamics of the industry creating a set of standamds that are sem-
ndependent of Windows, that drive the creation of “new" applications just for the Intemet, and
that make our existing technology Kok Dig, everly cumbersome, and not designed for the
connected world, Another exampie is the whole move toward componentization where smaller
companies can create speciakzed objects that provide the basic tools and functionality people
need without the “extra baggage™ that our curvent Office model requires. Two anecdotes in
point are Stewart Alsop's aricles on spreadsheets and StarOffice's components approach and
his discussion of Software Publshing's ASAP presentation software. Nole that my point is
tess that these ara the ikely discontinuities and more that there will be discontinuities and we
need to deal with them appropriately.

e >>>»»>> | would add non-buyying as a competitor that is what happens in the home often
times

So what is the bottom line on the question of competition? | think it boils down to some basic issues:

1. Areweuealingpmduds!hatmeetmeﬁmremmpeiﬁvehreathead—onoraremeydesigned
to win the battie that is almost aver?

2. Should we lead tha change to newer technologiesfparadigms or should take 2 mors
incrementsl approach based on the existing platform we have?

01109 Conficential FL AG 0004170 3
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Buiding for the Next Generation

3, How much unit share are we wiling to sacrifice to protect the fundamentals of the business? Is
it evan possible to do this? How do we combat aggressiveinon-economic based pricing
models?

4. How do you develop, market, and seli products when you ane your own primary compettor,

Question 3: Whatls our

If you lock at the latest DAD 3 Year Plan, it says that cur mission is to “To make the most popular line
of desktop poductivity toals in the world” Whie | don't have a better forrnutation in mind, | think this is
a prelty namow definition of what we need to accomplish and begs the queston “have we done that
already*? And i you look at the actual detall of the plans, 'd angue that while the quantity of
architectural change is high, the actual approach is fairly incremental. Put another way, let's ask the
question “why have our praducts been successful in the past”. First, we have a first-class development
team that has consistently produced supenor products. But given ail the dynamics and inerti, | don't
think that is enough. When its all said and done, | think the two biggest factors in our success have
involved capitalizing on market changas which the competition was slow to address. Wa lad the move
1o GUI products (both Windows and Mac) and then developed both a leading word processor and
spreadsheet thal we've integrated and sold in Office.

The combination of these poinls makes me wonder if we've really pulled back from the trees and asked
ourselves to articutate a broader vision of where we need to take our products. Can anyone articulate a
vision for our products that engages and excites customers (either IS or end-users); that challenges
them to think we can add real value to their business going forward; that motivates our own DAD
employees to new heights; or that transforms the way people think about deskiop applications? Fve
wied and ! cannot do this {OK. that may say more about my marketing skills than anything elsa!), and
with the possible exception of BilG's upcoming Comdex speech, | don't know of anyplace whare we
arm pushing this envelope. | alsc think many of the “new” things wa are doing (lika the
Intermnet/connectivity stuff) is reacting to the market rather than driving the market. it's great that we can
respond quickly, bit at some polnt we will miss something or getto it too late.

All of this is a vary difficult when ai the same time you are frying to sell products to 8 huge instalied
base that may not immediately be interested in hawing their world limed upside down. So here are the
issues:

1. Does our product sirategy really map to the customer, competitive and market changes that
{'ve articulated above?

2. is there a quiding vision and strategy for our development work beyond “mone of what we've
done for the past 10 years?" Is our “12/24" sirategy designed to fight the previous war or is it
designed to bring basic, fundamental innovation to the computing envifonment?

3. Are them completely new products that we should be working on that change the basic
paradigm of deskiop productivity tools, chsolete the entire category, or mave us into new
markets?

4. What is the next equivalent ta the "move te GUI” or “move to Suites™ and how are we going to
drive that shift and profit from it? Perhaps its the "connected world”, but are we dnving that or
being driven by tha market?

5. How doas our product Stratagy move the industry forward in fundamental ways without leaving
our huge installed base behind? ’

6. Do we have sufficient focus in our development work of should we be dropping development
for alternative plalficrms iike the Mac, Mips, Alpha, efc.

Question 4: When will we generate futine
For the past two cr three years, we've been forecasting slower growth rates in the deskiop applications
business. Andwhﬂeourgmhhasslowed.%yearvariousfacbrshavemkedhmriavcrw
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Buiiding for the Next Generation

enable us to exceed even some of our optimistic assumptions. But questions 1-3 above don't paint a
very favorable picture from a growth perspective. Here is the sobering view

« Much of the migration from DOS ®© graphical environments is over. There are stil some
’ people upgrading their hardware and potentially switching to our appiications, but we have
captured much of the cream of this crop.

» A big percentage of corporate accounts have made their move to suites and consolidated on
one vendor. We've been fartunate to benefit from much of this migration, but while there is
mare revenue tn generalts here, the volume is slowing.

s Whie our installed base has grown dramatically, upgrading this group is getting maore and
mare difficult — both due o lack of perceived need and the fact that many of the users reside in
organizations that purchase centrally.

&  Our Macintosh business has reached a plateau and is in fact deciining in corporate accounts,
Hardware trends here are working against us as Apple's sales are moving toward the home
and both their and our development efforts are leaving the farge 030 and soon 040 installed
bases with no easy way to upgrade/migrate. It's fair to ask if the Mac business ¢ould be a
$150-200M in FY97.

s More mportantly, inted hardware growth is moving away from our traditional applications
markets and into the home/consumer market where our panetration is much lower.
>»>>>3requires product innovation
The move to 32-bit applications is off fo a slow start, thus imibng what we can do in the short-
term to drive FY96 sales. Ulimately we will benefit here but & may be a longer, slower road
than we expected,

e A varely of factors are driving revenuefunit sold down, thus slowing our growth rate
independent of the unit salas trend.

s While the move to CD is positive, we've squeezed a ton of the cost of selling Office out of the
systam, Of course there is mone we can do, but meaningful profit growth will have to come
from the revenue side.

The postive way to kok at this is that for a variety of reasons we've done an incredible job harvestmg a
huge amount of revenue driven by some significant discontinuities in the market  The challenge we
face is finding the next source(s) of revenue to keep up this pace and grow the business from $3 billion
o $4 bilfion and beyord. Hare are some questions to address:

1. How do we generate growth in the comporate market when this group is the closest to
saturation? Is there any way o increase penetration now that share is very high?

2. Given our cument set of products, what can we do to sell them into new or expanding areas
like the Sorg, Scho, or home markets? Are thare changes in our products that we should
undertake to make this easier?

3. Am thers new products, services, add-ans, efc. that can generate meaningful revenues or
increase our penetration in existing accounts?

4. Canwe do a better job generating more revenue by attacking verticals, competitive pockets of
strengih, intemational merkets, piracy, eic?

5. How do we leverage the huge installed base wa have created 0 generate a regular annuity
revenue stream from them?

‘ Question 5: What is our business model? :
If you think about everything that has been presented above, it uitimately comes down to a question of i
how you define our business model (everything fom the product, to production, o selfing, etc.) and ;
how that needs 1o change. A modified version of the *4 P's” for DAD products would look like this:
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Bullding for the Next Generation

+ Product shrink-wrapped productivity software tools
Placement through channels of distribution {as opposed o direct)
Pecple: targeted at end users
Price: 10-20% premium with special terrms for corporate, education, and switchersfupgraders

While this is certainly the model we began with, it doesnt refiect how much the market and our
approach to it has changed. in most cases today the product is not shrink-wrapped (~50% of our sales
are ficense sales of one type or ancther). In addiion, our product mix has changed dramatically with
over 80% of Word sales coming through Office rather than as standalone apps. For a meaningful
percentage of these sales, we have a direct sales relationship with the customer, even if they end up
buying from a channel pariner. The buyers of the software are NOT end-users but are IS managers
and business decision makers who may or may not be “engaged” in our progucts. I fact, 'd wager
that the majority of people who use our products don't know that they have Office on their machine noc
do they have much control over repeat purchases or upgrades. These IS managers don't often view
our software as strategic or differentiated — more Bkely they see it as a basic commodity tool that they
hava to provide and support for thelr end-users. This makes charging a price premium increasingly
difficult, especially when we oiten end up negatiating with purchasing managers whase primary
mativation i3 cost driven, not valuse driven. All of this raises some prefty fundamental business
questions:

»>33>>3 litle overstated

1. How do we prevent our products from becoming commodiies in the marketplace? If we
cannot do that, how should our business madel change?

2. How do we manage headcount, markeling expenses, elc. in a situation that coukd easily
degrade into a downward price spiral (ang rising costs of sales) over the medium to iong-term?

3. How do we change our pricing, distribution, product, sefvices, efc. to structure an annuuty
business around cur karge installed base?

4. Should we change our pricing model relative 1o individual apps? VWhat role do they play in our
sales and rmarketing mx?

5. How shouid we evalve our distribution system to refiect ondine selling opporiunities, pressure
to sell our product through OEMSs, etc?

Question 6: Are we organized for success in this new environment?

We've done quite a bit of restructuring in DAD over the past 2-3 years to refiect the changes taking
place in the markatplace. In particular, wa've centalized marketng and created an Office Product Unit
o reflect the imporiance of Ofice in our business. Tne company has also made some significant
changes to empower the divisions to focus on their businesses and enable the feld to focus on specific
sets of customers. Overall, these changes have been positive and have enabled us lo keep pace with
the changing environment Having said that, ! think there are some significant ways in which the
current organization is dystunctional:

»  Within DAD, marketing has drifted too far away from the development teams, which has huit
both groups. Sorme of this was an gver-reaction to the creation of the product planning teams
and some of it is a function of having two versions of the product under development with
marketing only able to focus on the “nearterm” produck  To provide some scope to the
problem, nobody in DAD Marketing has a crisp view of what is in Office 86 except at a very
cursory level and my leam does not have as much expertise even on Office 95 as I'd like.

e Asasomewhat oulside observer at DAD technical managers meetings, I'm prelty amarzed at
how much “negotation™ and “coordination” stifl has ko go on to finalize on product specs and
final code. Despite lots of progress, we stil have lols of inconsistencies and my guess is that
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Builcing for the Next Generation

neither the Office team nor the individual apps teams enjoy the constant badgering that goes
on to push the project forward. Some of this is good because it challenges peaple bath o do
the right thing for their product AND for OFice and the division as a whole, but it makes daing
almost all phases of our work more difficult.

We do a poor job integrating work across product divisions, both on the marketng and
development levels. For example, having Access develcpment i a different division is one
contributing factor that has made it difficult to synch that product with the rest of Office. We
burmed tons of resources on issues ke the OPP, beta dates, vouchers, elr. in trying to sort out
how to deal with Access and Offics Pro. | hear continual “issues” betwean the Exchange and
Ren teams and ¢ don't think we have a coordinated view on how thesa products integrate
together for our corporate customers — from a product o licensing perspective. At last count,
customers wilt be able to get three different mail dients fom us (Wind5, Exchange, and Ren)
and I've hearo talk of work beginning oh a Schedwe+ version 8 and a new WIng5 client calied
Athena. On tha marketing side, we've done aimast no work to integrate with BSO to market to
our joint IS target audience nor have we worked well with the Consumer Division on issues iike
Works vs. Office, or penatrating Sorg’Soho.  Some of this is “nomal tension” in the
organization and there are some exceptions — we've worked well with the Win85 marketing
team for example. But even assuming some of the anecdotes above are just “rumors” or
gossip, overall there is lots of fnction in the system.

Finally, with the possible exception of the EUCU, we are out of synch with cur counterparts in
the customer units. Over the past year, we've had almost no interaction with the Enterprise
Unt and our interacton with the Organizabons Unit has been erratic and generatly
unproductive. Furthermore, we've had aimost no interaction with the field sales people and our
custormer interacton has been lamgely focused on EBC lype situations. To be frank, this is
pretty shocking when you consider haw much of our business flows through these two groups
and how important that is to the compary, and | think if's a sitvation where both the product
and customer units have failed.

>>>»>agrea on the last point  product managers seem less in touch with the field reality than
ever and less able o influence product development  that is a 105s for the company and we
should ¥y and improve need to get you better numencal data {rying to do that with yeliow
book and bus pian presentatons and pfsetc but they are not really used) but we need to gel
key people in the field in the right way notjust ebe's Me and my guys failure

When | look &t the organization Iissues |'ve raised above, I'm personally pretly frustrated because
despite good intentions, | know we'va not leveraged the crganization well in DAD Marketing - and | fear
the same is ue to some extent in development Some of these challenges have been around since |
joned the company — and | don't see them going away very quickly. Again, what | can offer is some
quastions:

1

0119

VWhat are the relative noles of product planning and marketng and how should marketing
integrate with the development teams? is & useful to have product planning playing an
intermediary role?

How does marketing funchon in a 1224 system where resources just get stretched too thin to
frack both the marketing of the cument version AND the developrment of two new versions?
With customers looking for us to “make it ol work together” and expecting a mare unified
strategy and product line, how ¢an Marketing and Development drive their own businesses
and yet stilt integrate well (and easdy) with other divisions?

How can product marketing suppont the customer unils and the field without getting into
situations where we are duplicating functions and pretending to be experts in other people's
areas?

>>>view us as customers?7?7? Not as dumb functionanes?77
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Are There Any Bright Spots?

With all of the doom and gloom above, its worth noting that there are significant posikve areas. This is
hardly an exhaustive list, but it is what comes to mind after re-reading the memo:

1.

| think we have a great team — bath within DAD and acruss the company and this is significant
foundation on which to build solutions Yo our issues. | know this sounds like apple pie but most
of cur success is driven by having smart, focused people working on our business when our
competitars, for a varety of reasons, have either not been smart, not been focused, or bath.
There is tremendous leverage in our current leadership position and economies of scale. We
have both market inertia 2nd financial strength working in ocur favor, and unless we do
something foolish, that is usually a good combination. Put ancther way, | dont envy Lotus,
Novell, Netscape, Apple or other challengersfunderdogs. The tick for us is to tum that
leadership into a dollar valued benefit

We can exploit opportunities for synergy and leverage across divisions and with the resesrch
group. We've already seen several instances of that in Office 4.x and Office 95 and more will
accrue in Office 96. 1t always astounds me how much research, thinking, development,
experimentation, etc. is going on in the company and how we manage o productize a
reasonable percentage of it

Despite a few concems that fve been pretty vocal about. Office 96 is going to be a great
product and will give us some breathing room to work through the challenges above.

We are clearly ahead in terms of developing and marketing Office as a solutions platforn
beyond the productivity business. This is a longer sell with most accounts, but its also more
strategic and is a grest way for us to increase penetration and ensure longevity in the account
it also creates bamers to entry for competitors since they not only have to create the
development tools and support for this, but they have to build the third party infrastructure to
drive it

Altheugh it may take some time, | think we have a huge oppertunity for growth outside our
established markets. This will take patience and investment. but our “oid” competitors have
been retracting from many of these areas and its not clear their new "parents” view the apps as
sirategic enough to leverage their exising strengths (beyond OEM type desis) & help
SmartSuite or PerfectOffice.

Fine, the World Might Be Ending, What Should We Do?

It's all wall and good (and relatively easy) to paint a gioomy picture, but | want to provide some ideas for
addressing the issues I've raised. f you review everything I've writen abave, | think it 2l bolls down 1o
re-evaluating our entire business strategy (across all disaiplines) and developing a plan gong forward
that brings all slements of cur business into alignment against our key objectives. | don't think this «
the case today as evidenced by four key points (and some related. ancillary issues):

1

C811/5%

We have not made a commitment to be an Enterprise vendor, either in development or
marketing, even though that is where we sell mast of our product and it is our largest instalied
base opponunity.

The competitive landscape has changed — we are our own biggest competitor and need %
adjust our product and marketing strategies to refiect that.

Our product strategy is more tuned to the “previous war™ and is not aligned with our cument
customers' needs nor designed to dove (as opposed to chase) future discantinuities in the
matketplace.

Growth is going to be diffictlt going forward and we dont have a product or business strategy
in place {0 deal with this.
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| did 2 short personal "brainstorm” on these issues and came up with 10 actionsfideas for us to pursue
— gome strategic, some factical. | know that some of this work is already being done, there are
probably other efforts that | don't know about, and | certainly won't pretend that | have the right en.
Having said that, here is my brainstormed action items to ensure a haalthy future for DAD:

1. Decide definitively that we are an Enterpise vendor and need to have "Enterprise-friendly”
applications - this involves understanding this target audience a lot better and designing things
especially for them.  Note that this doesn mean we are only an Enterprise vendor — just that
committed resources will go to this.
>>>>>{otaily must do eneterprise-firendly is right

2. Re-think the way we deploy development resources from two teams that da 12724 work to one
of several models that could help us address the issues sbove. As an example (and only an
example), one team coukd focus on specific work for corporate customers, ancther keam could
focus on core end user toals, and perhaps Consumer coukd focus on Scho/Mome modules to
pair with cora Office components,

3. Split off a smail team (somecna from each functional group?) to map out what our products
would look ke if we were starting from scratch today. This would force us fo ask hard
questions afid make trade-offs between revolution and evolution.

»>>>>2hravalll

4. Do the indepth analysis on "annuily* seling both for corporations and end users and
determine how our financial, developiment, marketing, and sales models reed to change

5. Broaden our vision from offering “productvity toals® to offering a range of ools, information,
services, efc. to generate on-going interest in our products. This is one componem necessary
to create the annuity relationship discussed above.

6. Take a small group and ask them to treat our products as a competitive app and figure out
what they would have 1o do (product, marketing, sebing, support, efc.) 1o get a company o
switch o some new set of apps. The pomt here is that at the extreme, this is the decision a
company makes when they upgrade from one version of our product ta the next. Of course we
would leam about how to address other competitors but the real issue 5 10 make sue we
understand how to get pecple o upgrade

7. Work with DRG 1o understand what we would have 1o change in cur business to be a true
development platform, in a similar way to Window (this is a DougHe idea). Uttimately, it may
not be practical and might not be the right mode!, but # would tefl us some intermediate steps
we can take to accelerate the *Solutions” efforts we have underway.

8. Do a quick project at the senior manager level and ask them what they would cut in terms of
resources and spending if they had to reduce their costs 20%. This would get at the question
of how our division would have o change to compete in a low price, commeodity world.

9. Re-focus our market research and understanding on opportunites for growth and new
segments. At the extreme, we coukl stop afl short-term focused research for a pened of time
and address the knowledge gap we have 1o fill to change our overall business approach to be
successiul in the future,

10. Finally, we have got to figure out how o work acress divisions mere efficientty.  This is panful
in marketing today, and | assuma it is diffcult in other areas as well. | don't have a specific
propasal, but it needs to be in the top 10.

>>>>Yas

Development keam notes: Word guys:  Spellt is very, very cool as is background auto-format  Ive
demoed them a ot but not written a long memo in awhile and they really made it easier. The only thing
I'd ke iz for Spei-it to recognize possessives beller — is there some option for that? PPT guys: 1did
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the outline for this in PPT (sorry Wond guys) which was great — | use your app more than any other
except, unforunately, mail One issue: how do you {can you) do automatic numbered lists in PPT?
Answer Wizard and Help were dueless — if its not in the product, | think it would be pretty popular.
XL/Access: Nothing to report on your products — sithough | will say that my productivity is up because
of AutoCale (I'm serious, we use this a bunch dong markating estimates and mugh cuts) and we did
our marketing budget integrating an Access custom form using replication with XL Pivot Tablest Just
want to make sure everyone kKnows that despite alf our gripes, and alf of the comments above,
marketing is easy when we have the products you htild — how was that for marketing spn?
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